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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

MAY 20, 2019 

PERMITS IN NATIONAL REGISTER HISTORIC DISTRICTS 

NRD-2019-0031 

2622 WOOLDRIDGE DRIVE 

OLD WEST AUSTIN NATIONAL REGISTER HISTORIC DISTRICT 

 

PROPOSAL 

Replace all windows and change some window openings; remove entry porch; construct a 2-

story rear addition; replace existing asphalt shingle roof with metal roof. 

 

ARCHITECTURE 

Irregular-plan house with cross-hipped roof, stone cladding, casement and fixed steel-sash 

windows, paired partially glazed doors with sidelights; entry porch, and 2-story side porch. 

 

RESEARCH 

The house was built for Morris and Mildred Lasky, who lived there for approximately a 

decade (ca. 1952-62). Morris Meyer Lasky was born in 1907 in Philadelphia to parents who 

immigrated from Russia and Poland. He owned a wholesale auto parts business for nearly 

forty years: Austin Automobile Supply Co., also known as Lasky’s Austin Automobile Supply 

Co. Lasky gained brief fame in Austin in 1952, when he alleged improprieties in a City 

bidding process and the City Council got involved; his claims were dismissed. He was 

involved in the Agudas Achim congregation and the Hill City lodge of the B’nai B’rith. Morris 

Lasky died in 1977 in Houston. 

 

Mildred Lasky was born in 1910. Little information was found about her during research, 

but it is known that she was active in the Sisterhood of the Congregation of Agudas Achim, 

with events often held in the family home at 2622 Wooldridge. Mildred Lasky died in 1987 in 

Houston. 

 

C. Ben Hibbetts constructed the house. Hibbetts was a local contractor active in the middle 

of the 20th century. For example, he constructed one of 22 houses in the Air Conditioned 

Village, sponsored by the National Association of Home Builders to showcase—and test—the 

effects of central air on happiness and health. 

 

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 

The proposed project has eight parts: 

1) Replace all windows with 1:1 and casement clad-wood windows; 

2) Infill the corners of the wraparound window openings on the north wall of the north 

wing; 

3) Reconstruct the entry porch; 

4) Replace the paired front doors and sidelights with a single door with sidelights; 

5) Replace the existing asphalt shingle roof with a standing-seam metal roof; 

6) Replace doors opening onto the side porch; 

7) Change window openings into sliding door openings on the rear first-floor wall; and 

8) Construct a 2-story rear addition. The addition will be clad in stone veneer at the first 

floor and lap siding at the second floor, and has a footprint of 167 square feet. It will 

not be visible from the street. 

 

STANDARDS FOR REVIEW 
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The house is a contributing property in the Old West Austin Historic District. It may meet 

the standards for designation as a historic landmark. 

 

Designation Criteria—Historic Landmark 
1) The building is more than 50 years old, having been built ca. 1949. 
2) The building appears to retain a high degree of integrity. 
3) Properties must meet two historic designation criteria for landmark designation (City of 

Austin Land Development Code (Section 25-2-352). The property may demonstrate 

significance according to one criterion. 
a. Architecture. The building is an intact example of the International style and appears 

to be architecturally significant. 
b. Historical association. Mildred and Morris Lasky lived in the house for approximately 

ten years. There do not appear to be significant historical associations. 
c. Archaeology. The property was not evaluated for its potential to yield significant data 

concerning the human history or prehistory of the region. 
d. Community value. The property does not appear to possess a unique location, physical 

characteristic, or significant feature that contributes to the character, image, or 

cultural identity of the community, Austin, or Texas as a whole. 
e. Landscape feature. The property is not a significant natural or designed landscape 

with artistic, aesthetic, cultural, or historical value to the city. 
 

The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation are used to evaluate projects in 

National Register historic districts. The following standards apply to the proposed project: 

2) The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of 
distinctive materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that 
characterize a property will be avoided. 
The proposed project replaces historic-age windows and changes the front entry, 

among other less visible changes. It does not retain the historic character of the 

building. 

5) Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property will be preserved. 
The proposed project preserves the house’s cladding and form, but it replaces 

distinctive historic-age windows that are a major character-defining feature. 

6) Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the 
severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature 
will match the old in design, color, texture, and, where possible, materials. 
Replacement of missing features will be substantiated by documentary and physical 
evidence. 
The proposed project replaces historic-age windows with new windows with different 

lite patterns and operation type. No evidence of deterioration has been presented. 

9) New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy 
historic materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. 
The new work will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the 
historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the 
integrity of the property and its environment. 
The proposed addition is located in the rear and will not destroy character-defining 

features. 

10) New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a 
manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic 
property and its environment would be unimpaired. 
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The proposed addition could be removed without impairing the essential form and 

integrity of the historic property. 

 

The proposed project somewhat does not meet the standards. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Postpone discussion until the June 24, 2019 Commission meeting to evaluate alternatives 

that will better preserve the building’s historic character. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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PROPERTY INFORMATION 

Photos 

 
Primary (east) façade of 2622 Wooldridge Drive. 

 
Detail of north corner. 
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Occupancy History 

City directory research, Austin History Center 
By Historic Preservation Office staff 
April 2019 

 

1949 Vacant 

 

1952 Morris M. and Mildred Lasky, owners 

 Austin Automobile Supply Co. 

 

1955 Morris M. and Mildred Lasky, owners 

 Austin Automobile Supply Co. 

 

 Joan Lasky 

 Student 

 

1959 Morris M. Lasky, owner 

 No occupation listed 

 

1962 Morris M. and Mildred Lasky, owners 

 Austin Auto Supply 

 

 Sandra L. Lasky 

 No occupation listed 

 

1965 Charles and Sondra Frulond, renters 

 Student 

 

1968 Homer S. Arnold, owner 

 Physician (3100 Red River Street) 

 

1973 Homer S. Arnold, owner 

 Physician (1010 W. 40th Street) 

 

 Susan Arnold 

 Student 

 

1977 Homer S. and Susana Arnold, owners 

 Physician (1010 W. 40th Street) 

 

Susan Arnold 

 Student 

 

1981 Edward F. and Alice Sherman 

 Professor, UT 

 

1986 Edward F. and Alice H. Sherman, owners 

 Professor, UT (Edward); proprietor, Sherman Real Estate (Alice) 

 

 Edward F. Sherman 

 Student 
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1992 Edward F. and Alice H. Sherman, owners 

 Professor, UT (Edward); agent, Eden Box & Co. (Alice) 

 

 

Background Research 

 
Sales notice, The Austin Statesman, 7/7/1948. 

 

 
“Morris Lasky home to be scene of tea,” The Austin Statesman, 9/26/1950. 
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“City to investigate bid ‘irregularities’,” The Austin Statesman, 10/30/1952. 

 

 
“Lasky claim held baseless by Seaholm,” The Austin Statesman, 11/6/1952. 
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“Emma says Lasky gripe ‘legitimate,’” The Austin Statesman, 11/8/1952. 

 

  
Death notice for Morris Lasky, The Austin American-Statesman, 11/30/1977. 

 

 

Building Permits 
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Sewer connection permit issued to Morrice [sic] Lasky for stone veneer residence 
and wood-frame garage, 8/8/1949. The permit notes that C. Ben Hibbetts was the 

architect, and that the project would be completed at a cost of $25,000. 

 

 
Sewer connection permit issued to C. Ben Hibbetts, 8/16/1949. 

 

 
Water tap permit issued to M. Lasky, 4/29/1950. 
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Above: Building permit issued to Homes [sic] S. Arnold for kitchen and den work, 5/3/1967. 
Below: Building permit issued to Edward Sherman for a second-floor addition, 9/23/1980. 

 

 
Inspection card for remodel, 5/4/1967. 

 

Permits from 1991 indicate that a dining room was added, the house remodeled, and a new 

detached garage constructed. 

Permits from 1996 indicate that a bathroom was remodeled. 


